



**Planning Commission
County of Louisa
Thursday, January 8, 2026
Louisa County Public Meeting Room
5:00 PM**

CALL TO ORDER

I. NEW BUSINESS

1. Louisa County Capital Improvements Plan (CIP)

II. OLD BUSINESS

1. Planning Commission By-Laws

III. OTHER

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ADJOURNMENT

**BY ORDER OF:
JOHN DISOSWAY, CHAIRMAN
PLANNING COMMISSION
LOUISA COUNTY, VIRGINIA**

Planning Commission CIP Presentations

January 8, 2026 at 5:00pm

- Louisa County Public Schools – David Baker/Doug Straley
 - New Elementary Schools – FY2027/FY2028

- Fire & EMS – Kristin Hawk
 - Training Center – FY2028
 - New Station – Zions Crossroads Fire & Rescue – FY2027/FY2028
 - New Station – Ferncliff Fire and Rescue – FY2028
 - LCVFD Building Expansion – FY2027

- General Services – Anderson Woolfolk
 - Landfill Closure Fund
 - Landfill New Cell Development
 - Animal Shelter - Building Addition – FY2027
 - Grounds Maintenance Shop – FY2027
 - Airport - Maintenance Building – FY2028
 - Animal Shelter Complex – Paving Parking Lot and Roadways – FY2029

- Parks & Recreation – James Smith
 - Parks & Recreation Long Term Capital Project Reserves

- Louisa County Water Authority – Wanda Colvin/Andy Wade
 - Bowler’s Mill Dam Improvements
 - LRWWTP Ammonia-Nitrogen

- Airport – Brittany Shupe/Andy Wade
 - South Side Apron, Taxiways & Hanger Site (Constr.) - FY2028
 - South Side Access Road & Auto Parking Design - FY2028
 - South Side Access Road & Auto Parking (Constr.) – FY2028
 - South Side Development(Ph2) Environmental Assessment– FY2028
 - South Side Develop - T-Hanger Buildings (Contr.) – FY2028
 - Northwest T-Hanger Site & Access Road (Plan Mod/Bidding) – FY2028
 - Northwest T-Hanger Site & Access Road (Const.) – FY2029
 - Northwest T-Hanger Building (Constr.) – FY2029
 - South Side Taxiway Extension & Apron (Design) – FY2030
 - South Side Taxiway Extension & Apron (Constr.) – FY2030

County of Louisa, Virginia
 Summary of Capital Improvement Projects
 Fiscal Years 2027 - 2046

<u>D e p t</u>	<u>Project Title</u>	<u>Unencumbered FY2027 as of 11/4/25</u>	<u>Requested Fiscal Year 2027</u>	<u>Requested Fiscal Year 2028</u>	<u>Requested Fiscal Year 2029</u>	<u>Requested Fiscal Year 2030</u>	<u>Requested Fiscal Year 2031</u>	<u>Fiscal Year 2032-2036</u>	<u>Fiscal Year 2037-2041</u>	<u>Fiscal Year 2042-2046</u>	<u>Fiscal Year 2047 and Beyond</u>	<u>Project Totals</u>
Information Systems (12400)												
	Computer Hardware Purchases	\$0	\$80,000	\$84,000	\$88,200	\$92,610	\$97,240					\$442,050
	Phone System Replacement	\$0	\$70,000									\$70,000
	Server Operating System Licenses	\$0	\$100,000									\$100,000
	AS400 Replacement	\$0	\$75,000									\$75,000
	Treasurer/ Commissioner Software Replacement	\$299,935	\$151,000									\$450,935
	Total	\$299,935	\$476,000	\$84,000	\$88,200	\$92,610	\$97,240	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$1,137,985
Elections (13000)												
	Electronic PollBooks	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$23,000	\$23,000	\$23,000	\$125,000	\$125,000	\$130,000	\$130,000	\$639,000
	Total	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$23,000	\$23,000	\$23,000	\$125,000	\$125,000	\$130,000	\$130,000	\$639,000
Sheriff (31000)												
	Vehicle Replacements	\$124,826	\$650,000									\$774,826
	Car Computers & Docks	\$8,907	\$60,000									\$68,907
	Mobile Radar Units	\$20,700	\$30,000									\$50,700
	Emergency Lighting & Equipment for Patrol Cars	\$0	\$155,000									\$155,000
	In Car Camera	\$0	\$122,000									\$122,000
	Mobile Radios	\$0	\$60,000									\$60,000
	Total	\$154,432	\$1,077,000	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$1,231,432
Fire & EMS (32000)												
	Fire Apparatus Units	\$1,611,707	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000					\$6,611,707
	EMS/Rescue Apparatus Units	\$422,969	\$448,000									\$870,969
	Fire Training Center Building			\$2,940,000								\$2,940,000
	Rugged Radio Microphones		\$114,000									\$114,000
	New Station - Zion Crossroads Fire and Rescue Station		\$50,000	\$9,000,000								\$9,050,000
	New Station - Ferncliff Fire and Rescue Station			\$9,000,000								\$9,000,000
	FS5/LCVFD Phase 1 Building Expansion		\$700,000									\$700,000
	FS3/BVFD HVAC Replacement	\$18,619	\$46,000									\$64,619
	RS3/LARS HVAC Replacement		\$30,000									\$30,000
	FS3/BVFD Roof Paint		\$7,400									\$7,400
	RS3/LARS Gutter Repair		\$20,000									\$20,000
	Pagers - All Volunteer Stations		\$30,000									\$30,000
	Total	\$2,053,295	\$2,445,400	\$21,940,000	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$29,438,695

<u>D</u> <u>e</u> <u>p</u> <u>t</u>	<u>Project Title</u>	<u>Unencumbered</u> <u>FY2027 as of</u> <u>11/4/25</u>	<u>Requested</u> <u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2027</u>	<u>Requested</u> <u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2028</u>	<u>Requested</u> <u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2029</u>	<u>Requested</u> <u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2030</u>	<u>Requested</u> <u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2031</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2032-2036</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2037-2041</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2042-2046</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2047 and</u> <u>Beyond</u>	<u>Project Totals</u>
	General Services (41000/42000)											
	Landfill Closure Fund	\$1,919,200	\$175,000	\$175,000	\$175,000	\$175,000	\$175,000	\$875,000	\$875,000	\$875,000	\$175,000	\$5,594,200
	Landfill New Cell Development	\$1,919,698	\$250,000	\$250,000	\$250,000	\$250,000	\$250,000	\$1,250,000	\$1,250,000	\$1,250,000	\$250,000	\$7,169,698
	Replacement of County Vehicles	\$11,694	\$85,000					\$625,000				\$721,694
	MSW Waste Compactors for Refuse Centers	\$194,562	\$70,000					\$330,000	\$390,000			\$984,562
	Solid Waste Equipment Replacement	\$70,443	\$120,000	\$120,000	\$120,000	\$120,000	\$120,000	\$600,000	\$600,000	\$600,000	\$120,000	\$2,590,443
	Administration Parking Lot Repairs	\$5,000	\$400,000									\$405,000
	LED Lighting - Lighting replacements		\$81,000	\$75,000	\$75,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$250,000	\$250,000	\$250,000	\$50,000	\$1,131,000
	Louisa Family Practice Renovation			\$265,000								\$265,000
	Asphalt Existing General Services Parking Lot			\$45,000								\$45,000
	Woolfolk Bldg Parking Lot Paving				\$51,000							\$51,000
	HVAC Replacements		\$200,000	\$200,000	\$200,000	\$200,000	\$200,000	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000	\$200,000	\$4,200,000
	Animal Shelter - Building Addition		\$2,023,000									\$2,023,000
	General Services - Grounds Maintenance Shop		\$867,000									\$867,000
	Impound Lot - Storage Building		\$79,000									\$79,000
	Human Services - Parking Lot Addition				\$175,000							\$175,000
	Medical Center - Lower Level Improvements			\$500,000								\$500,000
	Refuse Sites - Internet Access & Cameras (Bells, Buckn	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$20,000						\$100,000
	Refuse Sites - Replace Existing Buildings (one a year Pt	\$97,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$150,000				\$497,000
	Circuit Court - Lower Level File Storage Remodel			\$366,000								\$366,000
	Circuit Court - Landscaping			\$96,000								\$96,000
	Ogg Building- Front Concrete Replacement			\$109,000								\$109,000
	Grounds Maintenance Equipment		\$78,000	\$114,000	\$108,000	\$51,000						\$351,000
	Refuse Sites- Paving & Resealing		\$100,000	\$100,000	\$100,000	\$221,000						\$521,000
	Telehandler			\$65,000								\$65,000
	60' Articulating Boom Lift		\$32,000									\$32,000
	Airport - Maintenance Building			\$842,000								\$842,000
	Henson Building Improvements			\$225,000								\$225,000
	Access Management Key System Update			\$200,000								\$200,000
	Admin. Bldg. - County Attorney Remodel			\$332,000								\$332,000
	Library - New Fire Alarm Panel & Devices			\$80,000								\$80,000
	Medical Center Bldg Roof Replacement				\$211,000							\$211,000
	IGC Roof Replacement				\$450,000							\$450,000
	IGC Flooring & Wall Board Replacement				\$375,000							\$375,000
	Animal Shelter, FTC, Stor Bldg-Paving Parking Lot & Roadways				\$464,000							\$464,000
	District Court - New Fire Alarm Panel&Devices				\$33,000							\$33,000
	Old Jail - Replace Slate Roof				\$130,000							\$130,000
	Circuit Court Roof Replacement					\$275,000						\$275,000
	Ogg Building - Remodel Basement for Commonwealth Attorney							\$359,000				\$359,000
	Admin. Bldg. - New Fire Alarm Panel & Devices							\$76,000				\$76,000
												\$0
	Total	\$4,237,597	\$4,630,000	\$4,229,000	\$2,987,000	\$1,412,000	\$845,000	\$5,515,000	\$4,365,000	\$3,975,000	\$795,000	\$32,990,597

D e p t	Project Title	Unencumbered	Requested	Requested	Requested	Requested	Requested	Fiscal Year	Fiscal Year	Fiscal Year	Fiscal Year	Project Totals
		FY2027 as of 11/4/25	Fiscal Year 2027	Fiscal Year 2028	Fiscal Year 2029	Fiscal Year 2030	Fiscal Year 2031	2032-2036	2037-2041	2042-2046	2047 and Beyond	
LC Public Schools (61000)												
	Garage Equipment/Tools	\$0		\$10,000	\$10,000	\$10,000	\$10,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$25,000	\$215,000
	Cafeteria Equipment Replacement	\$12,126	\$140,000	\$35,000	\$35,000	\$35,000	\$35,000	\$140,000	\$220,000	\$300,000	\$82,000	\$1,034,126
	Digital Camera System/Security Cameras	\$27,252	\$20,000	\$25,000	\$25,000	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$100,000	\$125,000	\$150,000	\$23,000	\$535,252
	Maintenance Vehicle Replacement	\$46,000	\$46,000	\$46,000	\$46,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$250,000	\$275,000	\$300,000	\$46,000	\$1,155,000
	School Bus Purchases & Bus Equipment	\$612,058	\$875,000	\$900,000	\$900,000	\$900,000	\$900,000	\$4,500,000	\$4,775,000	\$5,000,000	\$873,000	\$20,235,058
	Technology	\$500	\$585,000	\$500,000	\$500,000	\$600,000	\$600,000	\$3,000,000	\$2,750,000	\$3,000,000	\$334,000	\$11,869,500
	Program/Fleet Vehicle Purchases	\$71,925	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$250,000	\$250,000	\$250,000	\$50,000	\$1,121,925
	HVAC	\$76,032	\$500,000	\$1,250,000	\$3,018,750	\$915,000	\$4,575,000	\$4,500,000	\$5,000,000	\$3,000,000	\$734,550	\$23,569,332
	Flooring/Carpet	\$10,283	\$25,000	\$25,000	\$25,000	\$25,000	\$25,000	\$125,000	\$137,500	\$150,000	\$22,400	\$570,183
	LED Lighting	\$55,422	\$75,000	\$55,000	\$55,000	\$55,000	\$55,000	\$275,000	\$287,500	\$300,000	\$50,200	\$1,263,122
	Restrooms	\$0	\$50,000	\$42,500	\$32,500	\$30,000	\$30,000	\$150,000	\$175,000	\$200,000	\$25,000	\$735,000
	Roof System Replacement	\$0	\$75,000	\$75,000	\$75,000	\$30,000	\$150,000	\$150,000	\$750,000	\$125,000	\$45,000	\$1,475,000
	Asphalt/Parking Additions/Repairs	\$0	\$75,000	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$100,000	\$90,000	\$100,000	\$189,400	\$634,400
	Plumbing/Boilers	\$0				\$35,000	\$35,000	\$80,000	\$80,000	\$80,000	\$16,000	\$326,000
	Turf Maintenance Mower	\$0		\$30,000	\$30,000	\$30,000	\$95,000	\$185,000	\$185,000	\$185,000	\$65,000	\$805,000
	Cabinets	\$0					\$50,000	\$50,000	\$250,000	\$250,000	\$0	\$600,000
	Refinish LCHS Stage	\$0									\$3,300	\$3,300
	Resurface LCHS Track	\$0			\$150,000						\$15,000	\$165,000
	Elementary School Refurbish	\$17,500									\$1,800	\$19,300
	TES Locks	\$0									\$8,000	\$8,000
	Safety & Security	\$70,930	\$85,000	\$85,000	\$85,000	\$85,000	\$85,000	\$420,000	\$420,000	\$420,000	\$0	\$1,755,930
	Classroom Furniture	\$0	\$15,000								\$0	\$15,000
	Field/Complex Maintenance/Replacements	\$0	\$50,000	\$30,000	\$30,000	\$30,000	\$30,000	\$150,000	\$150,000	\$150,000	\$150,000	\$770,000
	Elementary School	\$0	\$3,000,000	\$52,000,000								\$55,000,000
	LCHS Renovations	\$0		\$500,000								\$500,000
	Standby Generator-Jouett Elementary	\$0		\$129,000								\$129,000
	LCMS Remodel/Refurbishment	\$0								\$5,200,000	\$5,200,000	\$10,400,000
	CTE Center Remodel/Refurbishment	\$0								\$5,000,000	\$5,000,000	\$10,000,000
	Cleaning Equipment	\$0	\$150,000									\$150,000
	Standby Generator CO	\$0		\$178,000								\$178,000
	Gas Pump Replacement - JES/TES	\$0	\$73,000									\$73,000
	CTE Automotive Lifts	\$0		\$50,000	\$50,000							\$100,000
	Bleachers	\$0	\$95,000									\$95,000
	Modular Classrooms	\$0		\$250,000								\$250,000
		\$0										\$0
	Total	\$1,000,029	\$5,984,000	\$56,285,500	\$5,137,250	\$2,970,000	\$6,815,000	\$14,675,000	\$15,970,000	\$23,960,000	\$12,958,650	\$145,755,429
Parks and Recreation (71000)												
	Parks & Rec LT CIP Project Reserves	\$1,600,000	\$400,000	\$400,000	\$400,000	\$400,000	\$400,000	\$2,000,000	\$2,000,000	\$2,000,000	\$400,000	\$10,000,000
	BQC Gym Flooring	\$0	\$120,000									\$120,000
												\$0
	Total	\$1,600,000	\$520,000	\$400,000	\$400,000	\$400,000	\$400,000	\$2,000,000	\$2,000,000	\$2,000,000	\$400,000	\$10,120,000

<u>D</u> <u>e</u> <u>p</u> <u>t</u>	<u>Project Title</u>	<u>Unencumbered</u> <u>FY2027 as of</u> <u>11/4/25</u>	<u>Requested</u> <u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2027</u>	<u>Requested</u> <u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2028</u>	<u>Requested</u> <u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2029</u>	<u>Requested</u> <u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2030</u>	<u>Requested</u> <u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2031</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2032-2036</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2037-2041</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2042-2046</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u> <u>2047 and</u> <u>Beyond</u>	<u>Project Totals</u>
	Transportation Investments (82000)											\$0
	Total	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
	Community Development (81000)											
	Replacement of Comm Dev Fleet Vehicles	\$0	\$400,000									\$400,000
	Total	\$0	\$400,000	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$400,000
	Louisa County Water Authority (83000)											
	Bowler's Mill Dam Improvements	\$1,578,043	\$250,000	\$171,957								\$2,000,000
	LRWWTP Ammonia-Nitrogen	\$1,750,500	\$249,500									\$2,000,000
	Total	\$3,328,543	\$499,500	\$171,957	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$4,000,000
	Louisa County Airport											
	Airport Rotating Beacon		\$5,200									\$5,200
	Terminal Flooring Replacement		\$30,000									\$30,000
	Terminal Roof Replacement		\$140,000									\$140,000
	Master Plan Update		\$8,000									\$8,000
	South Side Apron, Taxiways & Hanger Site (Constr.)			\$150,000								\$150,000
	South Side Access Road & Auto Parking Design			\$38,000								\$38,000
	South Side Access Road & Auto Parking (Constr.)			\$150,000								\$150,000
	South Side Development(Ph2) Environmental Assessment			\$6,000								\$6,000
	South Side Develop - T-Hanger Buildings (Constr.)			\$1,500,000								\$1,500,000
	Northwest T-Hanger Site & Access Road (Plan Mod/Bidding)			\$36,000								\$36,000
	Northwest T-Hanger Site & Access Road (Constr.)				\$165,000							\$165,000
	Northwest T-Hanger Building (Constr.)				\$600,000							\$600,000
	South Side Taxiway Extension & Apron (Design)					\$6,000						\$6,000
	South Side Taxiway Extension & Apron (Constr.)					\$40,000						\$40,000
	Total	\$0	\$183,200	\$1,880,000	\$765,000	\$46,000	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$2,874,200
	Long Term Projects (91000)											
	Total	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
	Grand Total of Projects	\$12,693,831	\$16,235,100	\$85,010,457	\$10,400,450	\$5,943,610	\$9,180,240	\$22,315,000	\$22,460,000	\$30,065,000	\$14,283,650	\$228,587,338

Bylaws of the Louisa County Planning Commission

I. Purpose

1. The Louisa County Planning Commission is established to promote the orderly development of Louisa, as guided by the Code of Virginia, Title 15.2-2200, to improve the public health, safety, convenience, and welfare of their citizens and to plan for the future development of communities to the end that:
 - A. transportation systems are carefully planned;
 - B. new community centers are developed with adequate highway, utility, health, educational, and recreational facilities;
 - C. the need for mineral resources and the needs of agriculture, industry, and business are recognized in future growth;
 - D. the concerns of military installations are recognized and taken into account in consideration of future development of areas immediately surrounding installations and that where practical, installation commanders shall be consulted on such matters by local officials;
 - E. residential areas are provided with healthy surroundings for family life;
 - F. agricultural and forestal lands are preserved;
 - G. growth of the community is consonant with the efficient and economical use of public funds.

This is primarily achieved through the preparation and maintenance of a comprehensive plan for Louisa County.
2. The Louisa County Planning Commission serves in an advisory capacity to the Board of Supervisors and fulfills its responsibilities through:
 - A. creation and maintenance of the Comprehensive Plan, with associated maps, small area plans, gateway plans, transportation plans, and public service plans;
 - B. evaluation of the annual Capital Improvement Plan;
 - C. evaluation of zoning and land use requests.
3. The Louisa County Planning Commission is established and governed by the Code of Virginia, Title 15.2, Subtitle II, Chapter 2200 and the Louisa County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Article 4, Section 2-67.

II. Organization.

1. The rules contained in Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall be the parliamentary authority in all cases not covered by these Bylaws.
2. The County Attorney or a designee of the Commission shall be Parliamentarian.
3. The officers of the Planning Commission shall be the Chairman and Vice-chairman.

4. Nominations and elections of the Chairman and Vice-chairman shall be held at the regularly scheduled January meeting of the Planning Commission. Officers shall be elected by a majority vote of the Planning Commission, and shall serve a one-year term, or until successors shall take office. Officers shall take office immediately upon election. Vacancies shall be filled immediately by the aforesaid election process.
5. The Chairman shall have the following duties:
 - A. be responsible for conducting the meetings.
 - B. rule on the interpretation of the rules.
 - C. appoint all committees of the Commission.
6. The Vice-chairman shall preside in the absence of the chairman.
7. In the event that neither the Chairman nor the Vice-Chairman is in attendance at a meeting where a quorum is present, any member of the Board may call the meeting to order, and the members present shall elect a Chairman pro tempore to preside over the meeting until the Chairman or Vice-Chairman arrives.
8. The Director of Community Development or a designee of the Commission shall be the Secretary.

III. Members.

1. One member shall be appointed for a four-year term from each election district in the county by the board of supervisors, upon recommendation by the member of the board of supervisors of each district. The term of office for such commission member shall be concurrent with the term of the member of the board of supervisors for such district and shall end upon the death, resignation, or removal of the commissioner, or the expiration of the term of the member of the board of supervisors for such district.
2. One member shall be a member of the board of supervisors who shall be appointed as a liaison member for the planning commission for a term of one year at the first meeting of the board of supervisors in January.

Such member may participate in discussion of all matters before the planning commission but shall not be entitled to vote on any matter.

The Board Liaison is entitled to participate in any Closed or Executive Session.
3. (a) One member shall be a member of the Mineral Town Council and shall be appointed for a one-year term each January by the Mineral Town Council.

The member appointed for the Town of Mineral shall only participate in discussion of those matters related to land use within the Town of Mineral and within two miles of the corporate limits of the Town of Mineral.

(b) One member shall be a member of the Louisa Town Council and shall be appointed for a one-year term each January by the Louisa Town

Council.

The member appointed for the Town of Louisa shall only participate in discussion of those matters related to land use within the Town of Louisa and within two miles of the corporate limits of the Town of Louisa.

(c) Town members shall not be entitled to vote on any matter.

(d) Town members are not entitled to participate in any Closed or Executive Sessions, unless deemed necessary by a majority vote of the Planning Commission.

4. New members of the Planning Commission shall not participate in meetings until their appointment has been approved by the board of supervisors and they have been sworn in by a duly appointed officer of the court.

IV. Meetings.

(A) Regular Meetings

1. Regular meetings of the Commission shall be held in the Louisa County Public Meeting Room, County Office Building, on the second Thursday of each month. If such meeting falls on any legal holiday, then it shall be held on another day designated by the Commission. If the content of the agenda for any month is sufficient to warrant holding a second regular meeting for that month, then the second regular meeting shall be held on the fourth Thursday of that month.
2. The time for Regular meetings shall be 7:00 p.m., unless otherwise directed by the Commission. If a majority of the Commission fails to attend within half an hour after the time appointed for any meeting, the Secretary shall enter into the minutes the names of the members present and note the adjournment for want of a quorum.
3. Meetings shall not extend beyond ten o'clock (10:00) p.m. unless extended by resolution of the Commission.
4. A majority of the members present at the prescribed time and place to attend any meeting held or to have been held shall constitute a quorum and may adjourn such meeting from day to day or from time to time, not beyond the time fixed for the regular meeting.
5. All questions submitted to the Commission shall be determined by roll call vote of the majority of the members voting on any such question.
6. Minutes of all meetings shall be taken and kept by the secretary and shall be verified as true and correct by the signature of the Chairman; after approval by a majority vote of the members present at that meeting.

7. The Chairman, or Vice-Chairman if the Chairman is unable to act, may find and declare that weather or other conditions are such that it is hazardous for members of the Commission to attend any scheduled meeting. The Chairman, or Vice-Chairman if the Chairman is unable to act, will communicate such finding and declaration to the other members of the Commission by email, telephone, text message, or other expeditious method. Upon such finding and declaration, the scheduled meeting will be continued seven days to the same time and place. All hearings and other matters previously advertised for such meeting shall be conducted at the continued meeting and no further advertisement is required. The Director of the Louisa County Community Development Department or his or her designee will communicate such finding and declaration to members of the press as quickly as possible.

(B) Special Meetings

1. Special meetings of the Commission may be called by the Commission or by the Chairman and held at times and places designated by the Commission or by the Chairman at the time of the call of such meetings. All parties having requested notification of meetings pursuant to the Virginia Freedom of Information Act shall be notified of any special meeting.

(C) Work Sessions

1. Work sessions are public meetings and shall require compliance with legal notice pursuant to §2.2-3707 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended. Though work sessions of the Commission are conducted in an informal format, and are primarily for the purposes of discussion, and presentations of information to or by the Commission, if a quorum is present, the Commission may exercise any power conferred on it by statute during a Commission work session, including transacting County business by vote.

V. Conduct of the Meetings.

1. Members shall address only the Chairman or address each other through the Chair. A member must be recognized by the Chair before he or she shall proceed. Upon being recognized, a member shall not be interrupted during the time allowed, except when a point of order is called or upon being requested to yield the floor by another member.
2. After being entered as present at any meeting, each member shall notify the Chair before absenting himself or herself.
3. If the member from the District in which the matter arises will be absent, the member may notify the Chairman or the Secretary of the request to DEFER the matter to the agenda from the next regularly scheduled meeting. If notice is provided prior to advertising, the Secretary will not advertise the

matter. If notice is not received prior to advertising, the matter will be placed on the agenda and the Commission may consider deferral. For cases which have previously been advertised and deferred to a specific agenda, Commission action will be required for additional deferrals. Not more than one deferral may be requested by a Commissioner for any agenda item.

4. The Chair shall be allowed to participate in all matters without relinquishing the Chair.
5. All motions shall require a second before being voted upon.
6. A member may participate in an open meeting from a remote location through electronic communication methods, provided the member gives notice to the Chairman that he or she will be unable to attend the meeting and a quorum of the Planning Commission is physically assembled at the open meeting. The member participating from a remote location will be required to state the reason on the record (either a personal reason or a temporary or permanent physical disability or other medical condition that prevents his or her attendance) and his or her location. The member participating by electronic means must be heard by the public physically assembled at the meeting. The number of meetings a member may participate in remotely per year is limited pursuant to the Code of Virginia.

VI. Agendas.

1. Matters may be placed on the Agenda by resolution of the Commission, by notification to the Secretary by any member of the Commission, or by the Community Development Director with approval of the Chairman. The agenda may be amended by vote of the Commission.
2. Matters submitted within the prescribed filing deadline are automatically added to the agenda in the order of date/time of application. Administrative matters not required to be filed by the prescribed filing deadline, but which are requested to be placed on the Commission's agenda, may be accepted for placement until the date of publication of advertisement for Commission public hearings. After this date, matters can only be placed on the agenda with the consent of the chairman.
3. The Community Development Director shall have the authority to delay the placement of an item on the Commission's agenda if:
 - A. The application is not, on the opinion of the Director, complete; or
 - B. The applicant requests, in writing, the deferral of an application requiring a public hearing prior to the initial advertising deadline; or
 - C. The applicant requests, in writing, the deferral of an application not

requiring a public hearing prior to the deadline for preparation of the Commission's agenda.

4. Agenda and information to be discussed at meetings shall be distributed to each member at least five (5) days prior to the meeting.
5. The Commission shall retain Staff packet information concerning cases deferred for a maximum of sixty (60) days. The staff shall redistribute the information if the case is deferred for over sixty days. If the Staff recommends changes or if the applicant submits new proffers, these shall be mailed, emailed, sent by telephone, text or other expeditious method to the Commission.

VII. Courtesy.

1. Those persons coming before the Commission, including citizens and employees of and visitors to Louisa County, shall be extended every courtesy by members of the Commission.
2. Visitors at Commission meetings will be asked to extend the same courtesy. The Chairman of the Commission shall determine when the proper courtesies are not being demonstrated.

VIII. Consent Agenda

1. The purpose of the consent agenda is to provide a method for the expeditious handling of items, which, in the opinion of the Director of Community Development and the Chair, will not require any discussion and can be approved unanimously by the Commission.
2. Prior to the consideration of a motion to approve the regular agenda (which operates to simultaneously approve the consent agenda), the Chair shall ask if any member of the Commission would like to have an item removed from the consent agenda for separate discussion and consideration, or in order that there might be a separate vote on that item.
3. Any item or items which one or more members of the Commission wishes to remove from the consent agenda shall be removed by the Chair, and, at that point, a motion to approve the remaining consent agenda shall be in order. Items which have been removed from the consent agenda may be taken up by the Commission immediately after the approval of the remaining consent agenda or may be scheduled for consideration later in the meeting by the Chair with concurrence of the Commission.

IX. Public Hearings.

- (a) The Chairman shall conduct all public hearings. Time limits set forth herein are

considered as guidelines, but any and all time limits can be modified by the Chairman based on the application and public attendance at the hearing.

- (b) The order of public hearings shall be as follows:
1. Hearings should begin with a brief presentation from a staff member and/or representative from the cognizant board, authority, commission or committee, or by recognizing the Deputy County Administrator. The presentation should summarize the facts about the issue. Planning Commission members may seek clarification during the presentation.
 2. After a brief presentation from staff, the Chairman shall open the public hearing. The first speaker shall be the applicant or representative of the applicant and will be allowed ten (10) minutes for comments. The applicant will also have an additional five (5) minutes, at the close of the public hearing, for rebuttal of questions or concerns brought up by those speaking during the public hearing. If the applicant does not use all ten (10) minutes at the beginning of the hearing, he or she may add the leftover minutes to the rebuttal at the close of the public hearing.
 3. The duration of each public hearing should be limited to one hour, except that the public hearing on the CIP budget and any other public hearing on a matter anticipated by the Planning Commission to require an especially high degree of public input should be limited to two hours in duration. Any public hearing may be extended by majority vote of the Planning Commission.
 4. Prior to the beginning of a public hearing, persons wishing to speak will be encouraged to sign a public presentations speaker's card indicating their intent to speak, and include their name, and voting district. Each speaker may be permitted to speak for up to three (3) minutes; provided, however, a representative of a group may be entitled to use up to five (5) minutes. No person shall be permitted to "yield time" to another speaker for the purpose of gaining additional time. If prior to the beginning of a public hearing, it appears to the Chairman that there may be more prospective speakers than can be accommodated in the time designated for the public hearing, the time allotted to each speaker may be limited further by the Chairman, provided the imposition of such time limitation is uniform and applied to every speaker.
 5. At public hearings where citizens identifying from neighboring jurisdictions wish to speak, Louisa County residents will be called upon first to speak. Citizens from other jurisdictions will be permitted to speak after Louisa County residents have been given an opportunity to speak and if time permits prior to the close of the public hearing.
 6. Written correspondence (such as letters and emails, etc.) received on any public hearing matter shall be acknowledged by the Chairman during the public hearing and made a part of the official record of the meeting.

- (c) The principal purpose of public hearings is to provide an opportunity for members of the public to provide input to the Planning Commission regarding the subject of the public hearing. Accordingly, members of the staff will record statements and questions from speakers and, if sufficient time remains at the conclusion of the public hearing, the Planning Commission or the staff may attempt to answer the questions raised by speakers. Commission members should withhold their comments until after the public hearing portion is closed in order to ensure participation by the public without interference.
- (d) After public comments have been received, the applicant or the representative of the applicant, at his or her discretion, may respond with a rebuttal. There shall be a five (5) minute time limit for rebuttal.
- (e) After the applicant and public have concluded all presentations, the Chairman shall close the public hearing.
- (f) After the Chairman has closed the public hearing, no further public comment shall be permitted. Commission members, however, may direct questions to the applicant, the representative of the cognizant board, authority, commission, committee or a staff member, or others present, for clarification prior to taking any vote.
- (g) Following the close of the public hearing, the Commission may debate the merits of the issue before it. Afterwards, the Chairman shall entertain a motion to dispose of the issue. If the public hearing has been duly conducted and closed, but the Commission chooses to table action until a later meeting, additional public notification shall not be required; and discussion and action that take place at the subsequent meeting shall be limited to the Planning Commission only. If the public hearing is continued to a subsequent meeting additional public notification is necessary.

X. Administration.

1. Properties for which zoning action requests have been made shall be posted with signs in a conspicuous location. Such signs shall show the day, date, time, and place for any public hearing on the request, or shall notify interested parties that such information can be obtained from the Louisa County Community Development Department and provide a telephone number for the office.
2. Individual Planning Commission members may make requests for information or assistance from Community Development Department staff from time to time as long as the time necessary to fulfill such a request does not exceed one (1) hour per request. Any request which requires more than one hour of staff time shall be endorsed by the entire Commission.

XI. Amendments.

These Bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the Commission.